

CHAPTER 575 — H.F.No. 917

An act relating to retirement; authorizing special coverage for members of the Minnesota state retirement system prohibited from performing specified duties after age 60; clarifying various aspects of the special retirement program for certain employees of the department of military affairs; extending deferred compensation option to Little Falls city administrator; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 352.85, Subdivisions 1 and 3; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 352.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 352.85, Subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **ELIGIBILITY; RETIREMENT ANNUITY.** An ~~employee~~ of Any person who is employed by the department of military affairs who is covered by the general employee retirement plan of the Minnesota state retirement system as provided in section 352.01, subdivision 23, who is ordered to active duty pursuant to section 190.08, subdivision 3, and who elects this special retirement coverage pursuant to subdivision 4, who is required to retire from federal military status at the age of 60 years by applicable federal laws or regulations and who terminates employment as a state employee upon attaining that age shall be entitled, upon application, to a retirement annuity ~~commencing at the age of 60~~ computed in accordance with section 352.115, subdivisions 2 and 3, without any reduction for early retirement pursuant to section 352.116, subdivision 1.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 352.85, Subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **ADDITIONAL CONTRIBUTIONS.** The special retirement annuities and disability benefits authorized by this section shall be financed by an employee contribution from the covered department of military affairs employee of ~~one~~ 1.6 percent and an employer contribution from the department of military affairs of ~~one~~ 1.6 percent, which contributions shall be in addition to the contributions required by section 352.04, subdivisions 2 and 3, and shall be made in the manner provided for in section 352.04, subdivisions 4, 5 and 6.

Sec. 3. **[352.86] SPECIAL COVERAGE FOR TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT PILOTS.**

Subdivision 1. **ELIGIBILITY; RETIREMENT ANNUITY.** Any person who is employed by the department of transportation in the civil service employment classification of aircraft pilot or chief pilot who is covered by the general employee retirement plan of the Minnesota state retirement system pursuant to section 352.01, subdivision 23, who elects this special retirement coverage pursuant to subdivision 3, who is prohibited from performing the duties

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

of aircraft pilot or chief pilot after attaining the age of 60 years by a regulation of the federal aviation administration adopted by the commissioner of transportation and who terminates employment as a state employee upon attaining that age shall be entitled, upon application, to a retirement annuity computed in accordance with section 352.115, subdivisions 2 and 3, without any reduction for early retirement pursuant to section 352.116, subdivision 1.

Subd. 2. ADDITIONAL CONTRIBUTIONS. The special retirement annuity authorized by subdivision 1 shall be financed by an employee contribution from the covered aircraft pilot or chief pilot of 1.6 percent and an employer contribution from the department of transportation of 1.6 percent, which contributions shall be in addition to the contributions required by section 352.04, subdivisions 2 and 3, and shall be made in the manner provided for in section 352.04, subdivisions 4, 5 and 6.

Subd. 3. ELECTION OF COVERAGE. To be covered by the provisions of this section an employee of the department of transportation described in subdivision 1 who is employed in the described position on July 1, 1982 or thereafter shall, by August 1, 1982, or within 90 days of their employment, whichever is later, file a notice with the executive director of the Minnesota state retirement system on a form prescribed by the executive director stating whether or not the employee elects to be covered by this special plan. Elections shall be irrevocable during any period of covered employment.

Subd. 4. ACTUARIAL VALUATION EXHIBIT. In each valuation of the Minnesota state retirement system prepared pursuant to section 356.215, an exhibit pertaining to this special retirement program shall be included which shall contain for the special program those actuarial valuation content items specified in section 356.215, subdivision 4, which the executive director deems are necessary to adequately disclose the actuarial condition of the special program.

Sec. 4. LITTLE FALLS CITY ADMINISTRATOR DEFERRED COMPENSATION ELECTION.

Notwithstanding the deadline for elections established by Minnesota Statutes 1981 Supplement, Section 353.028, Subdivision 2, the person employed by the city of Little Falls in the position of city manager or administrator on the effective date of this act may, within 30 days following the effective date of this act, exercise the election authorized by section 353.028, subdivision 2 to be excluded from membership in the public employees retirement association and to participate in a deferred compensation program. An election pursuant to this section shall be retroactive to May 22, 1981. All other provisions of section 353.028 shall apply.

Sec. 5. EFFECTIVE DATE.

Section 3 is effective June 30, 1982. Section 1 is effective retroactively to July 1, 1980. Section 2 is effective on the first day of the full pay period next following the day following final enactment.

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Section 4 is effective upon approval by the Little Falls city council and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes, Section 645.021.

Approved March 22, 1982

CHAPTER 576 — H.F.No. 1663

An act relating to law libraries; recodifying the laws governing county law libraries; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 134.34, by adding a subdivision; 140.34; 140.35; 140.36; 140.37; 140.38; 140.39; 140.40; 140.44; 140.45; 140.46; and 480.09, Subdivision 5; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes 1980, Chapter 140; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 140.01 to 140.20; 140.212 to 140.33; 140.41 to 140.435; Minnesota Statutes 1981 Supplement, Section 140.21.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 134.34, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 6. REGIONAL LIBRARY DIRECTOR QUALIFICATIONS.
Graduation with a masters degree in library media from a university accredited by a regional accrediting association shall qualify an individual for employment as a regional library director. The state board of education shall adopt rules pursuant to chapter 15 to comply with the requirements of this subdivision.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 140.34, is amended to read:

140.34 ESTABLISHMENT OF COUNTY LAW LIBRARY.

Any county may establish a county law library wherever sessions of court are required to be held by law upon the filing of an order by the judge of the county or county municipal court or by a judge of the judicial district in which the county is situated with the clerk of court of the county.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 140.35, is amended to read:

140.35 WHO MAY USE.

Under proper regulations, of the board of trustees the use of the library shall be free to the judges of the state, state officials, judges of the district, municipal, county, conciliation and probate courts of the county, city and county officials, members of the bar, and inhabitants of the county.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 140.36, is amended to read:

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.